
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
SUMMER VILLAGE OF HALF MOON BAY 

                  JULY 5, 2023 @ 9:30 A.M. 
      TO FOLLOW ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

       
 
A. CALL TO ORDER   

 
 

B. AGENDA - additions/deletions 
- adoption 

 
 
C. ADOPTION OF MINUTES -    Regular Meeting Minutes, May 30, 2023 

- Municipal Planning Commission, June 21, 2023 
 

 
D. INFORMATION ITEMS 

 
1) Accounts Payable Report 
2) Quarterly Financial Report (item to follow) 
3) Public Works Report 
4) Development Update 
5) CAO Report 

 
 

E. REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

1) Council & Legislation 
 

a) Alberta Municipalities Convention 
b) Bentley Parade 
c) Golf Cart Resolution 

 
 

F. COUNCIL, COMMITTEES, AND CORRESPONDENCE 
 

1) Council Reports 
 

a) Mayor Johnston 
b) Deputy Mayor Remington 
c) Councillor Pashak  

• Sylvan Lake Regional Wastewater Commission (SLRWWC) 
• SLRWWC South Shore Line (SSL) 
• Association of Summer Villages of Alberta (ASVA) 



• Alberta Municipalities (AB Munis)
• Government of Alberta (GOA)

2) Committee Reports

a) Julie Maplethorpe, Summer Village of Jarvis Bay
• Parkland Regional Library Board

3) Upcoming Meetings

a) Council Meeting – September 26, 2023

G. ADJOURNMENT



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 30, 2023 

1 | P a g e

Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting of the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay, 
Province of Alberta, held May 30, 2023, in the Summer Villages on Sylvan Lake 
Administration Office at Sylvan Lake, Alberta. 

PRESENT Mayor:  Jon Johnston via Zoom 
Councillor:  Mike Pashak via Zoom  
CAO:  Tanner Evans    
Development Officer: Kara Kashuba 
Public Works Manager: Owen Olynyk 
Recording Secretary: Teri Musseau 

CALL TO ORDER The Meeting was called to order at 9:01 a.m. by Mayor Johnston. 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

HMC-23-045 MOVED by Councillor Pashak that the agenda be adopted as amended: 

D.2. Discuss steep ditch on Lakeview Drive under PW report 
F.1.D. ASVA Golf Cart Resolution 

CARRIED 

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

  HMC-23-046 MOVED by Councillor Pashak that the minutes of the Regular Meeting of 
Council held on April 25, 2023, be approved as presented. 

CARRIED 

Deputy Mayor Remington joined the meeting at 9:05 a.m. via Zoom. 

INFORMATION ITEMS 

1) Accounts Payable
2) Public Works Report
3) Development Update
4) CAO Report

HMC-23-047 MOVED by Mayor Johnston that Council add the Land Use Bylaw rewrite to 
the capital budget in the amount of $31,311.00, with funding to come from 
the General Contingency Reserve. 

CARRIED 

HMC-23-048 MOVED by Councillor Pashak that the information items be accepted as 
presented. 

CARRIED 

TABLED ITEMS 

COUNCIL & LEGISLATION 

Bylaw #175-23 Dog Control Bylaw 
HMC-23-049    MOVED by Mayor Johnston that Council give 2nd reading to the Dog 

Control Bylaw #175-23. 
CARRIED 

C-1

Page 1 of 3



  Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 May 30, 2023 
  

 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
HMC-23-050    MOVED by Deputy Mayor Remington that Council give 3rd and final reading 

to the Dog Control Bylaw #175-23. 
    CARRIED 
 
 
 

 Bylaw #162-21 Community Standards Bylaw 
HMC-23-051    MOVED by Mayor Johnston that Council give 2nd reading to the Community 

Standards Bylaw #162-21. 
    CARRIED 
 
HMC-23-052    MOVED by Councillor Pashak that Council give 3rd and final reading to the 

Community Standards Bylaw #162-21. 
    CARRIED 
 
 

 REQUESTS FOR DECISION 
 
 COUNCIL & LEGISLATION 
                         

   Association of Summer Villages of Alberta Conference 
HMC-23-053   MOVED by Mayor Johnston that Councillor Pashak attend the Association 

of Summer Villages of Alberta Conference being held October 19th & 20th at 
the Royal Hotel West in Edmonton. 

    CARRIED 
 
 
  Association of Summer Villages of Alberta Silent Auction 
HMC-23-054   MOVED by Councillor Pashak that Council make a cash donation in the 

amount of $100.00 to the Association of Summer Villages of Alberta for the 
silent auction. 

    CARRIED 
 

  
Bylaw #177-23  Burning and Fire Pit Bylaw 
HMC-23-055   MOVED by Councillor Pashak that Council give 1st reading to the Burning 

and Fire Pit Bylaw #177-23. 
    CARRIED 
 
HMC-23-056   MOVED by Mayor Johnston that Council give 2nd reading to the Burning 

and Fire Pit Bylaw #177-23. 
    CARRIED 
 
HMC-23-057    MOVED by Deputy Mayor Remington that Council by unanimous consent 

give 3rd reading to the Burning and Fire Pit Bylaw #177-23 at this meeting. 
    CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
HMC-23-058    MOVED by Councillor Pashak that Council give 3rd and final reading to the 

Burning and Fire Pit Bylaw #177-23. 
    CARRIED 
 
 
  Association of Summer Villages of Alberta Golf Cart Resolution 
HMC-23-059   MOVED by Councillor Pashak that Council accept the Association of 

Summer Villages of Alberta Golf Cart Resolution discussion as information. 
    CARRIED 
 
 
 

C-1

Page 2 of 3



  Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 May 30, 2023 
  

 

3 | P a g e  
 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 

    Fleet Replacement Policy 
HMC-23-060    MOVED by Councillor Pashak that Council approve the Fleet Replacement 

Policy as presented. 
    CARRIED  
   

 
 COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
        Mayor Johnston  

• Joint Services Committee 
  
        Deputy Mayor Remington 

• No Reports 
 

 Councillor Pashak  
• Sylvan Lake Regional Water & Wastewater Commission 

 
 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
  Julie Maplethorpe, Summer Village of Jarvis Bay 

• Town of Sylvan Lake Library Board 
• Parkland Regional Library Board 

  
HMC-23-061    MOVED by Mayor Johnston that the Council and Committee items be 

accepted as information. 
    CARRIED 

  
 
NEXT MEETING  
 
HMC-23-062     MOVED by Mayor Johnston that the next meeting of Council be held July 5, 

2023, at 9:00 a.m. 
     CARRIED 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
HMC-23-063      MOVED by Mayor Johnston that being the agenda matters have been 

concluded, the meeting adjourned at 10:50 a.m. 
     CARRIED 
 
 
 
 

   __________________________________ 
                             JON JOHNSTON, MAYOR 

 
        
 

   __________________________________ 
                                                    TANNER EVANS, CAO 

C-1

Page 3 of 3



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
June 21, 2023 

Municipal Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 1 of 2 

Initials 

Minutes of a Municipal Planning Commission Meeting of the Summer 
Village of Half Moon Bay, Province of Alberta, held June 21, 2023, at 
the Summer Villages on Sylvan Lake Administration Office in Sylvan 
Lake, Alberta. 

PRESENT:     Chair: Jon Johnston via Zoom 
Councillor:  Mike Pashak   
Member at Large: Gordon Skakun via Zoom 
CAO: Tanner Evans 
Development Officer: Kara Kashuba 
Recording Secretary: Teri Musseau 
Applicant(s): David Inglis  

Jeff Inglis 

CALL TO ORDER: Chair Johnston called the meeting to order at 8:59 a.m. 

AGENDA: 

MPC-23-001     Moved by Mike Pashak to approve the agenda as presented. 
CARRIED 

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION 

1. 6 Hummingbird Lane

Application for a guest house over an existing garage at 6  
Hummingbird Lane (Lot 7, Block 1 Plan 3741MC). 

MPC-23-002 Moved by Chair Johnston to approve the application for a guest house 
over an existing garage at 6 Hummingbird Lane subject to the following 
conditions being met to the satisfaction of the Development Officer: 

• Existing landscaping to remain, zero trees to be removed.
• Completions deposit of $3,000.00
• The height of the garage with guest house shall not exceed 7.62 m

(25ft.) in building height measured from grade.
• Copies of all applicable Building, Electrical, and Plumbing & Gas

permits shall be provided to the administration office to be kept on
file.

• An accessory building erected or placed on a parcel shall not be
used as a dwelling unit.

• Electrical power from the property line to any new buildings situated
on this parcel to be constructed underground.

• The exterior of an accessory building must be finished to match or
compliment the exterior finish of the main building.

• In situations where a detached dwelling is being rented out and
there is a guest house on the parcel, the guest house shall not be
rented out to a separate party than those renting the detached
dwelling.

C-2

Page 1 of 2



 Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
 June 21, 2023 

 Municipal Planning Commission Minutes 
 Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 

Initials 
 
 
 

 
 

 

• Guest house means an accessory building containing sleeping 
facilities for temporary usage only and may have a bathroom but 
shall not have a kitchen or other cooking facilities. 

  CARRIED  
 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  
 

MPC-23-003 Moved by Chair Johnston that the Municipal Planning Commission 
meeting of June 21, 2023, be adjourned at 9:27 a.m. 

     CARRIED  
 
  

      
 

_____________________________ 
JON JOHNSTON, CHAIR 

      
 
 

                   
TANNER EVANS, CAO 

C-2

Page 2 of 2



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 

Administration and Finance 

July 5, 2023 

Information Item  

Agenda Item: Accounts Payable Update

Background: 
Total payables processed and presented to Council     $ 37,728.43 
The following list identifies any payments over $3,000 and monthly costs: 

1. Triangle Construction   $  3,990.00 
a. Tree Removal and Clean-up

2. Summer Village of Norglenwold   $  3,317.67 
a. May 2023 Muni Specific Costs
b. May 2023 Shared Costs

Council Expense Claims Report:

May Expense 
 Jon Johnston $0 
 Andrea Remington $0 
 Mike Paskak $0 

Administrative Recommendations: 
Council to accept as information. 

Authorities: 
MGA 207 (c): The chief administrative officer advised and informs the council on 
the operations and affairs of the municipality.  

D-1

Page 1 of 3



Bank Code - NewAcct - New Main Bank Code

Invoice #

COMPUTER CHEQUE

Detail Amount Payment AmountGL Transaction Description
Payment # Date Vendor Name

GL Account

131 2023-05-31 Zazulak, Elizabeth
FLOWERS0523 232-000-200 - Green Space Pro Volunteer- Flowers of Main 222.21222.21

132 2023-05-31 Municipal Planning Services(2009) Ltd
1465 297-211-840 - Project RES - Lan Project Land Use Bylaw Rew 1,115.00

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 1,170.7555.75

133 2023-06-20 Empringham Disposal Corp
48377 243-000-200 - Contracted Servic May 2023 Weekly Collection 361.80

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 379.8918.09

134 2023-06-20 Red Deer Catholic Regional
2023-2 201-100-130 - ASFF-Residential Supplementary Tax Requisi 942.99942.99

135 2023-06-20 Rugged West Maintenance Inc.
1331 232-000-200 - Green Space Pro May 17 and 29 Mowing & Tr 400.00

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 420.0020.00

136 2023-06-20 Triangle Construction
1719 232-000-260 - Tree Removal Clean-up & Removal of Tree 300.00

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 315.0015.00
1715 232-000-260 - Tree Removal Tree Removal-Primrose Tra 3,500.00

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 3,675.00175.00
3,990.00Payment Total:
7,125.84Total Computer Cheque:

Invoice #

EFT

Detail Amount Payment AmountGL Transaction Description
Payment # Date Vendor Name

GL Account
52 2023-05-31 Summer Village of Norglenwold

2023-00072 226-000-200 - Enforcement ATB MC-CND Tire-Wiper Bl 11.00
261-000-110 - Development Ser 2023 Esri Canada ArcGIS R 166.50
226-000-200 - Enforcement ATB MC-Intercon Messaging 7.00
226-000-200 - Enforcement ATB MC-Velcro-Bylaw Truck 5.40
226-000-200 - Enforcement CO-OP-Bylaw Truck Wash 2.60
226-000-200 - Enforcement ATB MC-Mobil 1-Oil Change 20.73
226-000-200 - Enforcement ATB MC-Best Buy-Data Tra 4.00
226-000-200 - Enforcement ATB MC-140 W Inverter-Byl 229.2312.00

2023-00076 212-100-110 - Salaries SALARIES 2,413.42
212-100-130 - Training TRAINING 0.00
212-100-140 - Benefits BENEFITS 89.45
212-100-210 - Travel & Subsiste Travel & Subsistence 132.24
212-100-211 - WCB WCB 45.79
212-100-266 - PW Fleet PW Fleet 11.45
212-200-215 - Postage/Freight/C Postage/FreightCourier 10.11
212-200-500 - Printing Costs Printing Costs 32.36
212-200-510 - Office Supplies Office Supplies 48.56
212-300-217 - Phone/Fax/Interne Phone/Fax/Internet 28.81
212-300-540 - Utilities Utilities 53.75
212-300-250 - Facility Improvem Facility Improvements 7.55
212-300-255 - Facility Maintenan Facility Maintenance 88.86
212-300-263 - Condominium Co Condominium Costs 0.00

Summer Village of Half Moon Bay
List of Accounts for Approval (Detailed)Date Printed

2023-06-20  10:56 AM Page 1Batch:  2023-00036 to 2023-00041

D-1

Page 2 of 3



Invoice #

EFT

Detail Amount Payment AmountGL Transaction Description
Payment # Date Vendor Name

GL Account
212-300-240 - Computer Softwa Computer Software/Mtn 52.08
212-300-242 - IT Equipment IT Equipment 25.90
212-300-265 - Equipment Mainte Equipment Maintenace 16.71
212-300-270 - Equipment Renta Equipment Rental 11.71
212-300-510 - Other Contingenc Administrative Contingenc 19.69
212-300-530 - Building Insurance Building Insurance 3,088.440.00

3,317.67Payment Total:
3,317.67Total Other:

Invoice #

OTHER

Detail Amount Payment AmountGL Transaction Description
Payment # Date Vendor Name

GL Account
3471 2023-05-31 Receiver General/OTH

CP4-23 312-000-262 - CRA Remuneratio CPP-April Remuneration 1.001.00

3484 2023-05-31 Epcor
MAY232023-693 272-000-544 - Recreation Shelte Utilities 40.61

312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 43.893.28

3494 2023-06-20 Alberta School Foundation Fund
14309 201-100-130 - ASFF-Residential 2nd Quarter School Funding 27,240.0327,240.03

27,284.92Total Other:

37,728.43Total NewAcct:

Summer Village of Half Moon Bay
List of Accounts for Approval (Detailed)Date Printed

2023-06-20  10:56 AM Page 2Batch:  2023-00036 to 2023-00041

D-1

Page 3 of 3



July 4, 23 

Summer Village of  Half Moon Bay 

Finance 

Information Item 

Agenda Item:  2nd Quarter Financial Report 

Background: 
Administration would like to provide the following 2nd Quarter Financial 
information to Council. 

Please be aware that these reports have been prepared prior to fully completing 
June monthend and shared costing. 

Options for Consideration: 

Detailed 2nd Quarter Financial Report 

Administrative Recommendations: 
That Council accept this report as information. 

Authorities: 
MGA 207 (c) "advises and informs the council on the operation and affairs of the 
municipality" 

D-2

Page 1 of 21



D-2

Page 2 of 21



D-2

Page 3 of 21



D-2

Page 4 of 21



D-2

Page 5 of 21



D-2

Page 6 of 21



D-2

Page 7 of 21



D-2

Page 8 of 21



D-2

Page 9 of 21



D-2

Page 10 of 21



D-2

Page 11 of 21



D-2

Page 12 of 21



D
-2

Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 2

1



D
-2

Pa
ge

 1
4 

of
 2

1



D-2

Page 15 of 21



D-2

Page 16 of 21



D-2

Page 17 of 21



D-2

Page 18 of 21



D-2

Page 19 of 21



D-2

Page 20 of 21



D-2

Page 21 of 21



June 28, 23 

Summer Village of  Half Moon Bay 

July 5, 2023 

Public Works 

Information Item 

Agenda Item: Public Works Report  

Background: 
The following will provide Council with an update on Public Works activites and 
initiatives: 

- Warbler-Aspen Trail has been improved as per approved operational budget
- Arborist has carried out planned tree removal in West Reserve and Primrose
Lane to the annual budget limit.  Future tree removal work in the Summer Village
will be carried over to next year
- Crack sealing will completed in July as per contractor's schedule
- Surveying of the newly acquired lands is scheduled.  Administration will need a
motion to approve spending for capital works to take place this fall for that area

Options for Consideration: 
1) That Council accepts this report as information.

Administrative Recommendations: 
That Council accept this report as information. 

Authorities: 
MGA 207 (c) "advises and informs the council on the operation and affairs of the 
municipality" 

D-3



June 27, 2023 

Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 

July 5, 2023 

Planning and Development 

Information Item  

Agenda Item: Development Update 

Background: 
Development Permit Update: 
Currently there are 87 development permits issued in the Summer Villages (22 in 
Birchcliff, 3 in Half Moon Bay, 17 in Jarvis Bay, 20 in Norglenwold, and 25 in 
Sunbreaker Cove). 

The following is the list in Half Moon Bay: 
49 Lakeview Road  Demolition & Dwelling 
(outstanding conditions) 
43 Lakeview Road  Hot Tub 
(site inspection complete, superior to be closed) 

6 Hummingbird Lane Guest House (NEW) 

Administrative Recommendations: 
Council to accept as information. 

Authorities: 
Land Use Bylaw #123/13. 

D-4



August 5, 2022 

Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 

July 5, 2023 

Information  

Agenda Item: CAO Report 

Background: 

• According to the recently passed fleet replacement reserve, our Bylaw
Enforcement vehicle is in need of replacement. Administration is asking
Half Moon Bay to pass a motion to allow the spending of up to $3,104
from the fleet replacement reserve (currently sitting at $6,138) in order to
pay for the Jarvis Bay share of the new vehicle. This price does not reflect
the trade in value of the current truck.

Options for Consideration: 
1. Council accept as information.

Administrative Recommendations: 
Accept as information. 

Authorities: 
MGA 207 (c) “advises and informs the council on the operation and affairs of the 
municipality”. 

D-5

Page 1 of 2



E-2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council 
JSC 
HRSC 
JSO 

 
 
 

JANUARY 
CAO Goal Setting 
CAO Goal Setting 
CAO merit increase 

FEBRUARY 
Year End Financial 
Q4 Review 
Year End Financial 

MARCH 
Financial Audit Review 

APRIL 
Q1 Review 
Adopt Mill Rate 
Q1 Financial Review 

MAY JUNE JULY 
Q2 Review 
Organizational Meeting 
Q2 Review 
Organizational Meeting 

AUGUST 

SEPTEMBER 
Strategic Planning 
CAO Review 

OCTOBER 
Q3 Review 
Q3 Review 
Budget Discussion 
CAO Review & Increase 
Consolidate CAO Review 

NOVEMBER 
Adopt JSC Budget 
SV Budget Discussion 

DECEMBER 
Adopt Municipal 
Budget 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

D-5

Page 2 of 2



June 28, 23 

Summer Village of  Half Moon Bay 

July 5, 2023 

Council and Legislation 

Request for Decision 

Agenda Item: Alberta Municipalities Convention 

Background: 
Administration has received information about the upcoming Alberta 
Municipalities Convention.  The 2023 Alberta Municipalities Convention is being 
held September 27 – 29 at the Edmonton Convention Centre.  Online attendance 
will be available to those who do not wish to attend in person.  Online attendees 
will not be able to attend breakout education sessions or in-person networking.   

The cost to attend in-person is $620 for early-bird registration and virtual 
attendance, or $775 for in-person if registration is after August 18th.  Summer 
Village members who register at least one (1) in-person attendee for Convention 
will have the option to register one attendee virtually for the reduced price of 
$250.  For every additional participant in-person, they will have the option to 
register a virtual attendee at the reduced rate. 

Options for Consideration: 
Council has allocated $630 for the convention in the 2023 budget.  

Administrative Recommendations: 
Council to discuss and provide direction to Administration. 

Authorities: 
2023 Budget 

E-1-A

Page 1 of 6



Event Summary 
 

Registration is OPEN! 
 
DATES: September 27 - 29, 2023 
 
LOCATION: Edmonton Convention Centre 
 
AGENDA: Coming soon ... 
 
TRADE SHOW: Registration for Trade Show is now open, register today! If you have 
any questions, please email tradeshow@abmunis.ca for more details.  
Trade Show Brochure 
 
SPONSORSHIP: If you are interested in becoming a 2023 Alberta Municipalities 
Convention sponsor, email sponsorship@abmunis.ca to receive a package. We are 
always looking for new and exciting partners, and can work with you to customize a 
package that best suits your needs.  
Sponsorship Brochure 
PRICING 
Type                                           Early-bird & Virtual Pricing    In-Person Regular                                                  

(After August 18) 
Alberta Municipalities Member           $620                                       $775 
RMA Member                                      $720                                       $900 
Non-Member      $1000    $1200 Municipal 
Interns                                    Complimentary 
Virtual                                                  $250 
Virtual registrants will NOT have access to live breakout session. Slide presentations 
and audio from each session will be recorded and made available following 
Convention. 
 
PRE-CONVENTION SESSIONS 
Cost: $395 + tax  
All sessions run concurrently from 8:30 am to 4:00 pm on Tuesday, September 26 
 
 

E-1-A

Page 2 of 6

https://cvent.me/wWKeq2
https://cvent.me/ZPzVZO
mailto:tradeshow@abmunis.ca
https://www.abmunis.ca/system/files/2023-06/Trade%20Show%20Opportunities%202023%20Brochure.pdf
mailto:sponsorship@abmunis.ca
https://www.abmunis.ca/system/files/2023-06/2023%20Convention%20Sponsorship%20Package.pdf


EOEP - Effective Meetings 
Join the inaugural offering of EOEP’s newest course, Effective Meetings! The course 
builds on highly rated education sessions at recent ABmunis and RMA conventions 
by providing a full day interactive learning experience that will help participants:  

• Understand what makes a great meeting and how you can help make 
meetings great 

• Examine how rules of order and proper procedure enhance your meetings 
• Discover ways to set up great decisions 
• Identify action items that you can implement at your next council meeting 

 
As an elected official, you spend a good chunk of your life in meetings. This course 
provides tools, tips, and ideas to make your meetings work best! 
**Please note this course is not applicable for associate or affiliate members. 
 
EOEP - Municipal Corporate Planning and Finance 
Understanding municipal finances is fundamental to the job of an elected 
official.  Municipal councils are expected to plan, govern and set policy for the best 
interests of their community.  Sound financial planning and management is key to 
supporting a healthy municipality that can ensure that its current and future service 
commitments are funded in a sustainable manner. 
 
It is important that elected officials understand how financial planning and 
monitoring align with the municipality’s business cycle, including strategic planning, 
business planning and performance measurement.  Elected officials need to 
understand their role in establishing and prioritizing competing service level 
demands on behalf of citizens and then determine strategies to fund those service 
level commitments. 
 
**Please note this course is not applicable for associate or affiliate members. 
 
RMRF Legal Course 
* Please note this course is not applicable for associate or affiliate members. 
The Reynold Mirth Richards and Farmer LLP legal pre-convention session will focus 
on two different subjects through the day: 
CAOs: The One and Only 

E-1-A

Page 3 of 6



This session will cover a variety of topics related to the lifecycle of a Chief 
Administrative Officer, including hiring and firing, employment contracts, healthy 
communications between Council and the CAO and recognizing and cultivating the 
unique roles of Council and the CAO in a municipality.  In addition, we will discuss 
some of the more mundane aspects of life as a CAO such as signing authority, going 
in camera and CAO duties and responsibilities.    
 
Back Off: Harassment in the Workplace 
As employers, municipalities have an obligation to provide a safe workplace for 
employees, which includes providing a workplace free from bullying, harassment or 
intimidation.  This session will address the recent increase in difficult ratepayer 
interactions and what options municipalities have available to them to avoid 
potential liability under Occupational Health and Safety legislation, Human Rights 
legislation, Workers Compensation legislation and the common law, including the 
brand new tort of harassment. But this session will also address internal challenges 
and the importance of those at the top leading by example. 
 
STUDY TOUR 
Edmonton International Airport (YEG) Airport City Sustainability Campus Tour 
Tuesday, September 26 from 2:00 pm to 4:30 pm (Complimentary) 
Join us for an exciting tour of the Airport City Sustainability Campus, a hub of 
leading and emerging technologies from all sectors focused on aviation, commercial 
development and decarbonization. Having attracted $1.5B in investment over the 
past nine years, the YEG campus houses many types of businesses in the 
transportation, cargo logistics, manufacturing, sustainability, technology 
development, training and tourism sectors. This tour will explore the Airport City 
Sustainability Campus’ integrated ecosystem that spurs collaboration and innovation 
while fostering the commercialization of clean and emerging technologies.  
Attendees will be picked up from the Edmonton Convention Centre, and will be 
dropped off at the same location at the conclusion of the study tour. 
** Timing for this tour overlaps with Pre-Convention sessions. If you are registered 
for Pre-Convention, please do not register for the YEG Airport Tour. 
 
HOTELS 
Alberta Municipalities has partnered with the following hotels to do our best to get 
members the best hotel rates. Please note, as our pre-determined blocks become 

E-1-A

Page 4 of 6



full, the below rates may no longer be available. A deposit of first and last night's 
room rates may be required at the time of booking.  
 
Fairmont Hotel Macdonald - rates starting at $265 per night + tax 
Sandman Signature Downtown Edmonton - rates starting at $160 per night + tax* 
Chateau Lacombe Hotel - rates starting at $154 per night + tax* 
Courtyard Marriott Downtown - Room block full 
Westin Edmonton Downtown -  Room block full 
*Taxi chits will be available for those staying at the Chateau Lacombe and Sandman 
Signature hotels for transportation to and from the Edmonton Convention Centre, as 
well as transportation to and from evening events. Please see the front desk of your 
hotel, or the registration desk at the Edmonton Convention Centre to pick up a chit.  
 
IN MEMORIUM 
We will hold a moment of silence during the program for elected officials or 
administrators that we have lost in the last year. If you have a person you would like 
to remember a person, please send their name to events@abmunis.ca to have them 
included in the 2023 In Memoriam. 
 
MUNICIPAL FLAGS OR LOGOS 
As always, we will have our flag/logo video play throughout the event. If your 
flag/logo has changed in the last year, please send the updated, high-resolution 
photo to events@abmunis.ca. 
  
PARTNERS PROGRAM  
Cost: $100 
The Alberta Municipalities Partners’ Program is available for those members who are 
bringing a partner along with them to Edmonton. Registration will provide your 
partner with the following access: 

• Entrance to the Opening Trade Show Dessert Reception on Wednesday, 
September 27 from 3:00 – 5:30 pm 

• A ticket to the Host City Reception 
• Access to the Royal Alberta Museum and the Art Gallery of Alberta, along with 

taxi transportation to and from the venues if necessary 
 

E-1-A

Page 5 of 6

https://book.passkey.com/event/50218562/owner/3871/home
https://reservations.sandmanhotels.com/113066?groupID=3852529
https://bookings.travelclick.com/114528?groupID=3870742#/guestsandrooms
mailto:events@abmunis.ca
mailto:events@abmunis.ca


Please note, registration DOES NOT grant partners access to any other Convention 
agenda items or meals, including Opening Ceremonies, breakout sessions, or any 
other plenary activities. Visits to the museum and the art gallery will be self-directed 
by the participant. 
  
 

E-1-A

Page 6 of 6



June 28, 23 

Summer Village of  Half Moon Bay 

July 5, 2023 

Council and Legislation 

Request for Decision 

Agenda Item:  Bentley Fair Days 

Background: 

The Town of Bentley has extended an invitation for Council to join them on 
Thursday, August 10th for their 60th Anniversary of the Bentley Fair and Rodeo 
parade. 

A luncheon will take place at 11:30 am at the Bentley Municipal Office with the 
parade to to follow at 1:00 p.m.  Vehicles will be provided for members wishing to 
participate.  They are asking attendees to bring an identification sign that can be 
placed on the exterior of the vehicle. 

The RSVP deadline is July 26th should Council wish to attend. 

Options for Consideration: 
1) That Council members  attend should their schedules allow.
2) That Council accept as information and Administration send their regrets.

Administrative Recommendations: 
1) That Council members attend  should their schedules allow.

Authorities: 

E-1-B

Page 1 of 2



E-1-B

Page 2 of 2



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 

July 5, 2023 

Council & Legislation 

Request for Decision  

Agenda Item:  Golf Cart Resolution – Alberta Municipalities 

Background:   
The request is that the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay sponsor (“Mover”) the 
attached Golf Cart resolution at the ABmunis convention this fall.  This resolution 
meets all of the ABmunis criteria.  It has been discussed with their Board and 
approved for inclusion in the convention agenda.  

HMB does not have to do any work on this resolution except to pass a motion 
that states the municipality will sponsor the resolution and act as the Mover of the 
resolution.  Delburne will be the Seconder. 

From the ABmunis Resolutions Policy, a resolution must address a topic of 
concern affecting municipalities on a regional or provincial level, and must be 
approved by the council of the sponsoring municipality and seconded by an 
additional municipal council.  A resolution must not direct one or more 
municipalities to adopt a particular course of action or policy but must be worded 
as a request for consideration of an issue, including a call for action by Alberta 
Municipalities.  All resolutions must receive official endorsement from a 
seconding municipality before they are submitted. The purpose of seeking a 
seconder is to confirm whether the resolution is of significant interest to other 
municipalities. It is also to seek feedback on the clarity and content of the 
resolution itself, to ensure the intent and rationale is clear. 

Options for Consideration: 
1. Council to approve the resolution and act as the Mover of the resolution at the

ABmunis convention.
2. Accept as Information

Administrative Recommendations:  
1. Council to approve the resolution and act as the Mover of the resolution at the

ABmunis convention.

E-1-C

Page 1 of 6



 
 
Authorities:   
MGA 207 (c): The chief administrative officer advised and informs the council on 
the operations and affairs of the municipality. 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E-1-C

Page 2 of 6



 
Title of resolution:  Use of Golf Carts on designated municipal roads 
 
Moved by: Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
Seconded by: Village of Delburne 
 
WHEREAS  a number of ABmunis members, primarily from smaller 
communities, have expressed support for the use of golf carts on certain 
designated municipal roads as an ability-inclusive, cost-effective, safe, 
environmentally-aware transportation alternative that enhances community 
connectivity. 
 
WHEREAS  as the result of a Saskatchewan Urban Municipalities Association 
(SUMA) member resolution, the Saskatchewan Traffic Safety Act has been 
updated to allow people to drive golf carts on certain municipal roads.  As of May 
2023, Saskatchewan municipalities have the ability to allow golf carts to be used 
on public roads if their municipality passes a bylaw, subject to certain limitations 
and Saskatchewan Government Insurance (the “Administrator”) approval.   
 
WHEREAS  British Columbia and Ontario have implemented pilot projects to 
determine how to best integrate the safe use of golf cart in municipalities.  The 
municipalities involved in the pilot projects must pass a by-law to permit golf cart 
use and may set out specific requirements, including additional safety 
requirements, based on what is best for their communities.   
 
WHEREAS  the operation of golf carts on Alberta municipal roads would be 
governed by changes to the Traffic Safety Act of Alberta and should be enabled 
through a municipality specific bylaw.  Off Highway Vehicles already enjoy this 
type of flexibility through the Alberta Traffic Safety Act 120(4)(b) where the 
council of a municipality may, by bylaw, authorize or issue a permit authorizing 
persons to drive off-highway vehicles along certain roads that are under their 
direct control and management. 
 
WHEREAS the use of micro-mobility battery-powered scooters on roads is a 
good example of where municipality specific bylaws have been successfully 
created in coordination with amendments to Alberta provincial regulations to 
allow for the safe use electric scooters.  
 
IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT Alberta Municipalities advocate for the 
Government of Alberta to make changes to the Alberta Traffic Safety Act and 

E-1-C

Page 3 of 6



regulations plus the Use Of Highway And Rules Of The Road Regulation that 
would allow Municipalities, if they so desire, to approve the use of golf carts on 
certain approved roads and public lands within their municipality.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
The requested action should have a high priority.  Many jurisdictions across 
Canada already see the benefit of having an ability-inclusive, cost-effective, safe, 
environmentally-aware transportation alternative that enhances community 
connectivity and golf carts can provide this.  Properly position, these changes 
could also form part of a bigger strategy on aging population, mobility, and 
declining rural populations. 
 
Currently, golf carts are classified as a prohibited miniature vehicle, which also 
includes personal transporter, pocket bikes, go carts, electric scooters and golf 
carts.  These vehicles are motor vehicles as defined in the Traffic Safety Act; 
however, they also meet the definition of “miniature vehicles” which are 
prohibited from use on roads.  With the rise of a micro-mobility revolution to 
deliver low- carbon, cost- effective, ability-inclusive means for alternative 
transportation, changes are required to the prohibited miniature vehicle 
classification.  Golf Carts and electric scooters should be removed from this 
classification and provided with rules and regulations that would allow for their 
safe operation on municipal roads. 
 
Saskatchewan 
As of May 2023, Saskatchewan municipalities now have the ability to allow golf 
carts to be used on public roads for more than just getting to and from the 
course.  SGI has updated a policy that will allow people to drive golf carts on 
certain municipal roads, if their municipality passes a by-law, subject to certain 
limitations and SGI approval.  This change in regulations is the result of a 
member resolution at their recent annual convention of the Saskatchewan Urban 
Municipalities Association (SUMA).  The resolution called for change, stating, 
"many SUMA members, primarily from smaller communities and resort villages, 
have expressed support for ability-inclusive, cost-effective, safe, environmentally-
aware transportation alternatives that enhance community connectivity and 
reduce parking congestion in public gathering spaces."  
 
In response to that resolution, the Saskatchewan Government stated that, "Our 
government has listened to our municipal stakeholders and asked SGI to make 
these common-sense changes that balance safety considerations with meeting 
the needs of our communities," Minister Responsible for SGI Don Morgan said.   

E-1-C

Page 4 of 6



 
"Expanding the use of golf carts within our resort village will allow golf carts to 
operate as vehicles on municipal roadways subject to numerous safety 
requirements," Resort Village of Shields Mayor Angie Larson said. "This will 
improve the quality of life for our community." 
 
British Columbia 
A new pilot project will now allow golf carts to operate on certain local roads in 
Chase and in Qualicum Beach, providing drivers with more transportation 
options, Premier Christy Clark announced today. 
 
“This change makes it easier for people, particularly seniors, to stay engaged in 
their community and access the services that make their lives better,” said 
Premier Clark. “By allowing these lower emission vehicles on local streets, we 
are connecting British Columbians with their families and friends and improving 
not only their health but the quality of their lives.” 
 
“This innovative pilot project will provide British Columbians with more 
transportation choices.” said MLA for Parksville-Qualicum Michelle Stillwell. 
"Qualicum Beach is a great location to trial the program, keeping people, 
especially seniors connected with their family, friends and community.” 
 
"We have heard from residents that they would like additional options to use 
alternative and environmentally friendly vehicles," said Qualicum Beach Mayor 
Teunis Westbroek. "Golf carts will give our town more ways to get around and we 
are thrilled to be part of this pilot project as I believe it is appropriate in our 
community." 
 
The golf carts will need to meet detailed operating conditions and vehicle 
specifications such as only driving on municipal roads with a maximum speed of 
30 km/h during daylight hours. The golf cart must be registered and insured and 
be equipped with seat belts, a horn, lights, signals, and a rear-view mirror. 
Drivers will need to have a valid driver’s license. 
 
Ontario 
Ontario has created a ten-year pilot framework for permitting the use of golf carts 
on-road; referred to as ‘golf cars’ in regulations.  On June 3, 2020, the Ontario 
Ministry of Transportation introduced this new pilot project in order to examine 
golf cart’s ability to safely integrate with other vehicle types and determine 
whether existing rules of the road are adequate. The pilot project operates under 

E-1-C

Page 5 of 6



Ontario Regulation 407/21 Pilot Project – Golf Cars sets out the broad regulatory 
framework to allow golf cars on roads on Pelee Island and in Huron-Kinloss and 
includes operator and vehicle requirements.  
 
The province established the broad regulatory framework for golf carts that 
include a number of vehicle and operating requirements that must be met. The 
municipalities involved in the pilot project must pass a by-law to permit golf cart 
use and may set out specific requirements, including additional safety 
requirements, based on what is best for their communities. Municipalities are in 
the best position to determine the needs of their communities. 
 
Electric Scooters 
Micro-mobility companies Lime, Neuron and Bird Canada offer rentable, battery-
powered scooters after Alberta’s provincial regulations were amended to allow 
for their use.  Like other forms of motorized transportation, scooters are subject 
to laws governing safe usage. But those laws can vary. A great example of how 
municipalities can decide what is best for them, in Calgary scooter users can ride 
on sidewalks but not on roads and in Edmonton, it is the opposite: Riders are 
prohibited from sidewalks but allowed on roads with speed limits of 50 km/h or 
less. Both cities permit scooters on paved pathways and in bike lanes. It is 
notable that these rules specifically apply to rented scooters. 
 
Municipalities in Alberta already have some flexibility in determining road safety 
rules under the Alberta Traffic Safety Act and this flexibility should be extended to 
the use of golf carts.  Example, Alberta Traffic Safety Act 120(5)  A [municipal] 
permit, order or bylaw issued or made under this section may do one or more of 
the following: (a) prescribe terms and conditions, or either of them, under which 
an off-highway vehicle may be operated on a highway; (b) prescribe the 
maximum speed limits, not to exceed the maximum speed limits prescribed for 
vehicles under this Act, that are applicable to an off-highway vehicle; (c) 
prescribe the minimum speed limits that are applicable to off-highway vehicles; 
(d) prescribe routes to be used by off-highway vehicles. 
 

 
 

E-1-C

Page 6 of 6



Summer Village of  Half Moon Bay 

May 30, 2023 

Council Reports 

Information Item 

Council Reports: 
Jon Johnston 
Andrea Remington 
Mike Pashak  

• Sylvan Lake Regional Wastewater Commission (SLRWWC)
• SLRWWC South Shore Line Project (SSL)
• Association of Summer Villages of Alberta (ASVA)
• Alberta Municipalities (AB Munis)
• Government of Alberta (GOA)

Committee Reports: 
Julie Maplethorpe, Summer Village of Jarvis Bay 

• Town of Sylvan Lake Library Board
• Parkland Regional Library Board

Upcoming Meetings: 
Next Council Meeting – September 26, 2023 

F-1,2

Page 1 of 3



1 

COUNCIL REPORTS (July 5, 2023): 
Councillor Mike Pashak - report 

Sylvan Lake Regional Wastewater Commission (SLRWWC) 

• Administration and Chair Pashak met with the Town of Eckville’s consultant to
provide background on the Commission and its operations. Administration also
provided a number of documents to the consultant to assist in the Town’s
wastewater treatment business case study.

• Expenses have remained largely within expectations.  Several maintenance activities have
taken place this year. These costs are seasonal and are not a reflection of future
maintenance for the rest of the year.

• The projected Operating surplus remains steady at $86,718 compared to a budgeted surplus
of $230. With the smaller budget surplus compared to previous years, Administration must
remain vigilant on cost control on a month-to-month basis.

SLRWWC South Shore Line Project (SSL) 

SLRWWC CAO Minchin had discussions with the Executive Director of the Grants Branch for 
Alberta Transportation.  Originally, Alberta Transportation provided grant funding for only a 
portion of this project.  The department is now looking at the possibility of providing funding up 
to the original application amount.  They stated that Minister Dreeshen (MLA, Innisfail & Sylvan 
Lake) is supportive of the project.  If additional funding is approved, it may require them to fund 
it over 2 years, this year and next.  The CAO is expecting an update by June 30. 

Association of Summer Villages of Alberta (ASVA) meetings: 
Annual conference and AGM 
The conference will be held October 19 – 20.  It is the 65th year of operation for the ASVA.  It 
should be a very informative conference with session topics and speakers that include; Alberta 
Emergency Management, Rural Health - Nurse Practitioners, Broadband, FireSmart, Invasive 
Species, Climate Action plans, and Municipal Affairs. 

LGFF 
The ASVA is still hopeful that they will be able to influence the outcome of this work to the 
benefit of Summer Villages.  With Minister McIver returning to the role of Minister, Municipal 
Affairs, the work should be completed this fall.  Minister McIver initiated this work a number of 
years back so with his background on the issue I expect it will be easy for him to bring it to a 
conclusion this fall.  He did state at the beginning of the process that if the three municipal 
associations could not come to an agreement on a single solution, he would make the final 
decision and it would be likely that nobody is happy with the result.  The three associations 
could not come to an agreement on a single solution. 

F-1,2

Page 2 of 3



2 
 

Alberta Municipalities (AB Munis and formerly AUMA) 

• As an ABmunis Board member, I attended the Summer Municipal Leaders Conference 
meetings in Delburne and Spruce Grove.  The topics included potable water issues in the 
province, future of intermunicipal collaboration policy, and a debrief on the Alberta election.  
Each meeting had approximately 60 participants and local MLAs attended to give greetings. 

• ABmunis President Cathy Heron and ABmunis Chief Policy and Advocacy Officer Rachel de 
Vos are scheduled to attend the next JSC meeting.   

 

Government of Alberta (GOA) 
2023 Alberta Election 
With the election over there are a number of familiar faces returning to key positions within the 
Cabinet.  Here is a partial list of the Ministers and other key positions: 

Ric McIver – Municipal Affairs (returning to this portfolio) 

Devin Dreeshen – Transportation (local MLA & returning to this portfolio)  

Rebecca Schulz – Environment (formerly Municipal Affairs) 

Jason Nixon – Seniors, Community & Social Services (local MLA & formerly Environment) 

Rajan Sawhney – Advanced Education (formerly Transportation) 

Nathan Cooper – Speaker of the House (returning to this position) 

Shane Getson – Government Whip (significant control of government business and caucus) 

 

 
 

F-1,2

Page 3 of 3



 

 
 

PRLS Board Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2023 
 

The regular meeting of the Parkland Regional Library System Board was called to order at 10:05 a.m. on 
Thursday May 18, 2023 in the Combined Board Room, Lacombe. 
 
Present: Teresa Rilling (Board Chair), Alison Barker-Jevne, Jul Bissell, Doug Booker, Deb Coombes, 

Jaime Coston, Edna Coulter, Teresa Cunningham, Jeff Eckstrand, Richard Forsberg, Elaine 
Fossen, Dwayne Fulton, Clark German, Barbara Gibson, Barb Gilliat, Twyla Hale, Pam 
Hansen, Dana Kreil, Stephen Levy, Julie Maplethorpe, Joy-Anne Murphy, Norma Penney, 
Leonard Phillips, Ray Reckseidler, Deb Smith, Les Stulberg, Delaney Thoreson, Carlene 
Wetthuhn, Angie Fricke (alt. for Shannon Wilcox), Darren Wilson 

 With Regrets: Cody Hillmer, Connie Hueslman, Gord Lawlor, Marc Mousseau, Bill Rock, Pat Toone, 
Shannon Wilcox, Bill Windsor, Janice Wing 

Absent: Cal David, Amanda Derksen, Kathy Hall, Michael Hildebrandt, Ricci Matthews, Jackie 
Northey, Shawn Peach, Diane Roth, Sandy Shipton, Michelle Swanson, Doug Weir, 
Patricia Young 

Staff: Kara Hamilton, Andrea Newland, Ron Sheppard, Tim Spark, Donna Williams 

Guests: Lindsey Bauman and Erin Switenky (MNP) 

Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 10:05 a.m. by Teresa Rilling.  

As part of PRLS’ legislative compliance procedures, board members who send regrets are 
excused at the beginning of each meeting.  

Motion by Stephen Levy to excuse Cody Hillmer, Connie Hueslman, Gord Lawlor, Marc 
Mousseau, Bill Rock, Pat Toone, Shannon Wilcox, Bill Windsor, and Janice Wing from attendance 
at the board meeting on February 23, 2023 and remain members of the Parkland Board in good 
standing.  
       CARRIED     
       PRLS 24/2023 

1.1 Agenda 
 
1.1.2 Adoption of the Agenda  

Rilling asked if there were any additions or deletions to the agenda. There were none.  
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
Motion by Len Phillips to accept the agenda as presented. 

        CARRIED  
PRLS 25/2023 

1.2. Approval of Minutes 
Rilling asked if there were any amendments to the February 23, 2023 minutes. There were none.  

Motion by Ray Reckseidler to approve the minutes of the February 23, 2023 meeting as 
presented. 

CARRIED 
PRLS 26/2023 

 
1.3. Business arising from the minutes of the February 23, 2023 meeting 

Rilling asked if there was any business arising from the minutes. There was none.  

2. Business Arising from the Consent Agenda  
Rilling asked if there was any business arising from the consent agenda. There was none. 

Motion by Barb Gilliat to approve the consent agenda as presented. 
        CARRIED  

PRLS 27/2023  

3.1. Approval of the 2022 Parkland Audit   
Lindsey Bauman and Erin Switenky from Parkland’s audit company, MNP, presented Parkland’s 
audit. In their report, the auditors state: 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Library as at December 31, 2022, and the results of 
its operations, changes in its net debt, and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.  

Parkland received a clean audit. Bauman noted the three items in the management letter from 
last year have been resolved, which shows the commitment of Parkland Staff to ensuring 
financial management is sound.  

 Motion by Elaine Fossen to approve the Parkland Regional Library Board 2022 Audit Findings, 
Report to the Board of Directors/Executive Committee for December 31, 2022, and the Financial 
Statements for December 31, 2022, as presented.  

        CARRIED  
        PRLS 28/2023 
3.2 Audit Policy     

Sheppard reviewed the potentially changed audit policy from the Parkland Policies and Bylaws 
document. At the March 16th Executive Committee meeting, staff were directed to create a draft 
policy allowing the Executive Committee of the board to approve the audit. Parkland’s auditors  



 
 

 

stated it is typical practice to approve financial statements at the initial presentation to a board 
or Executive Committee representing the board. Parkland’s auditors are required to perform 
audit testing with the Parkland staff until the audit is approved.  

Staff inquired with the Public Library Services Branch (PLSB) whether there were any legislative 
requirements that would impede the Executive Committee from being the body responsible for 
approving Parkland’s audit. They responded that there is “nothing explicit in the legislation. 
However, it is implied that finances are the responsibility of the corporate board as a whole, not 
the Executive.” 

One advantage of having the audit approved earlier is that Parkland might receive its 
government operating grant and the rural library services grant earlier. Submitting an approved 
audit is one of the Government of Alberta’s annual grant requirements. 

After some discussion, a motion was made:  
Motion by Joy-Anne Murphy to hold a special online meeting of the full board to coincide with 
the completion of the audit for the full purpose of approving the Parkland Audit.  
       DEFEATED  
       PRLS 29/2023 

Motion by Deb Smith to change PRLS Executive Committee policy to read “The Executive 
Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving Parkland’s audit which will be forwarded 
to the board at the board’s next meeting.  
       CARRIED  
       PRLS 30/2023 

Lindsey Bauman and Erin Switenky left the meeting at 11:09 a.m. 

11:10 – 11:19 Comfort break 

3.3. 2024 Budget/Requisition Increase 
Sheppard reviewed a preliminary budget for 2024 for information. In the budget, there were no 
changes made to the requisition, or salary and benefits lines, excepting to adjust for current 
staffing levels. In the case of provincial operating funding, staff assumed the increases 
announced this year will continue next year.  

All other adjustments to specific lines throughout the budget are a reflection of estimates based 
on inflation or actual costs over previous years.  

 

 

 



 
 

 

Without addressing salaries, there is an initial balance of +$30,256 at this time. 

Motion by Deb Coombes to receive for information.  
       CARRIED 

        PRLS 31/2023 

3.4.  Salary Grid    
Sheppard explained. At the September 15, 2022 board meeting, following the Compensation 
Review presented by Dr. Margaret Law, a motion was made “to direct Ron Sheppard to work 
with Dr. Law to develop a seven-step payroll grid to replace Parkland’s current grid”. This 
motion was a result of a recommendation from the Compensation Review which stated: “The 
salary grid has an unusual number of steps. The recommendation is 5-8 steps, which is an 
estimate of the number of years that it takes to master the job.” Currently, there are fifteen 
steps on Parkland’s salary grid with uniform increments of 2.5%. 

Based on Law’s Compensation Review, Parkland’s salary ranges were acceptable. However, the 
Executive Committee was unable to provide direction to staff regarding the adoption of a new 
salary grid.   

The complexity of reducing the steps of the salary grid were such that the Executive Committee 
could not resolve the issue at their last two meetings. Instead, they decided to form a 
subcommittee which would examine this issue comprehensively. Reducing the steps of the grid 
encompasses Parkland’s whole compensation philosophy, policy, and budget.  

Since Parkland still has to develop a budget for 2024, the Executive Committee recommended 
using the current salary grid and compensation policy for one more year since it is unlikely a 
new grid can be established before the budget needs to be approved by the board in 
September. 

Volunteers from the Executive Committee for the subcommittee include Deb Smith, Barb Gilliat, 
Len Phillips, and Janice Wing.  

Motion by Deb Smith to use the current compensation policy to create the 2024 budget, and to 
create a subcommittee to work on creating a new compensation policy and salary grid.   
       CARRIED      

PRLS 32/2023 

Motion by Les Stulberg to appoint Twyla Hale, Jul Bissell, and Stephen Levy to join the 
compensation review subcommittee. 
       CARRIED 
       PRLS 33/2023 

Twyla Hale left the meeting at 12:00 p.m. 



 
 
 

 
3.5. Marketing and Advocacy Committee Report   

Norma Penney reviewed the Advocacy Committee report. She explained the history of the 
committee, its expansion to the other library systems, and its many recent efforts, especially 
those associated with the provincial election.  

Despite recent increases to library grants from the Government of Alberta, the Advocacy 
Committee believes library boards need to still be visiting current MLAs to thank them for the 
additional grant funding with an undertone that ideally more needs to be done to sustain rural 
public library service in particular.  

Many materials have been created to assist library boards with this advocacy effort. 

After Penney’s update, Sheppard reviewed the Marketing Report, and indicated where to find 
the latest Municipal ROIs on Parkland’s website at the following URL:  

Return on Investment - Parkland Regional Library System (https://www.prl.ab.ca/about-
us/return-on-investmentprl.ab.ca) 

Board members are strongly encouraged to download and print their municipal ROIs and 
present them to council.  

In addition, Parkland has created a marketing strategy to contribute to the success of the main 
priorities that directly relate to the main goals of the Strategic Plan 2023-2025. This plan is 
meant to be a general guiding document, with detailed action items to be determined by 
Parkland staff. 

Motion by Doug Booker to receive the Marketing and Advocacy Committee report for 
information. 

CARRIED 
       PRLS 34/2023 

3.6. ALTA Representative  
Sheppard reviewed. Former Parkland Board member Bob Green is stepping down from his long-
time position as the Parkland representative on the board of the Alberta Library Trustee 
Association (ALTA). His term will be ending on May 31st this year. Green has asked for 
nominations or volunteers to serve on the ALTA board.  

Sheppard asked for nominations or volunteers. Barb Gilliat volunteered to be Parkland’s new  
 ALTA representative.  

3.7.1.  Director’s Report 
3.7.2.  Library Services Report  
3.7.3.  I.T. Report  
3.7.4.  Finance & Operations Report 

file://alap-fs02.prl.local/PRLStaff$/PRLAdmin/Board%20&%20Municipalities/Board%20and%20Committees/Board/2023%20Board/May%2018,%202023/Return%20on%20Investment%20-%20Parkland%20Regional%20Library%20System%20(https:/www.prl.ab.ca/about-us/return-on-investmentprl.ab.ca)
file://alap-fs02.prl.local/PRLStaff$/PRLAdmin/Board%20&%20Municipalities/Board%20and%20Committees/Board/2023%20Board/May%2018,%202023/Return%20on%20Investment%20-%20Parkland%20Regional%20Library%20System%20(https:/www.prl.ab.ca/about-us/return-on-investmentprl.ab.ca)


 
Rilling asked if there were any questions regarding the Director’s 
Report, Library Services Report, I.T. Report, or the Finance and 

Operations Report. There were none. 

Motion by Len Phillips to receive the Director’s Report, Library Services Report, I.T. Report, and 
Finance and Operations Report for information.  
       CARRIED 
       PRLS 35/2023 

3.12. Parkland Community Update  
Stettler and Stettler County formed an intermunicipal library board agreement three years 
ago, which has just expired. They have renewed the agreement for five more years and 
celebrated that fact on May 4th.  

The Penhold & District Public Library have been running programs with the assistance of 
children from the community. In addition, their friends of the library group will hold an artisan 
gala with a chocolatier, caricature artist, and more.  

The Sedgewick & District Municipal Library has been in their new location downtown for six 
months and support/demand for the library has continued to increase.  

The Village of Cremona recommends a CBC podcast by Terry O’Reilly about marketing for 
libraries. They have also set up a small free library in their community and encourages others to 
do the same.  

The Clive Public Library is holding a program called “Books and Cooks” for pre-school aged 
children that has been very popular.  

The Caroline Municipal Library has been holding a program called “Sensory Wednesday” 
featuring sand and water play that has been extremely popular. They are also holding film nights 
through the summer.  

Motion by Dana Kreil to receive the Parkland Community Update for information.  
        CARRIED 
        PRLS 36/2023 

4. Adjournment 
Motion by Norma Penney to adjourn the meeting at 12:17 p.m. 

CARRIED  
        PRLS 37/2023 

 
 
 
____________________________________  

 Chair 



 

 

Parkland Update 

Thursday, June 1, 2023  
 
 

Get the latest Parkland updates, library news, training, events, and more! 
 

  

 

Join us for Stronger Together, November 3, 9 and 10! There will be one full day online, and 
two days in-person at the River Cree Resort and Casino in Enoch, AB (west Edmonton). You 
can look forward to a variety of sessions suited for anyone who works with, and loves, 
libraries, including a focused development day for Library Trustees.  
  
Online Stronger Together Conference – November 3rd, 2023 
In-Person Development Day for Library Trustees – November 9th, 2023 
In-Person Stronger Together Conference – November 10th, 2023 
  
For any inquiries about the conference, please send your questions to 
librariesarestrongertogether@gmail.com. 
Stay updated with all our conference news by following the conference pages on Facebook 

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=080fa517df&e=61be8a5b9b
mailto:librariesarestrongertogether@gmail.com
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=2cb43f8726&e=61be8a5b9b


 

and Twitter, or visit the Stronger Together website to learn more. 
   

 

Young at Heart Trade Show  

 

 

Parkland attended the Young at Heart Trade Show in Red Deer earlier this week. We spoke 
with over 200 people about libraries. We got questions about ILL's and eResources, and 
many people shared their positive experiences and views of the library. Our goal was to raise 
awareness and encourage people to visit their local libraries to see all the amazing services 
offered, and we considered it to be a great success!  
   

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=5f133121be&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=1148493a34&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=10904f127b&e=61be8a5b9b


 

Library Managers Coffee Break 

 

Member library managers are invited to a monthly virtual coffee break hosted by Parkland. We 
discuss upcoming events, changes, or challenges. It is a great opportunity to bounce ideas off 
other library managers, ask for or give feedback, and network with peers. You can find the 
recurring invitation in your calendar or reach out to Library Services if you need to be re-added 
at libraryservices@prl.ab.ca. 
   

 

Vistaprint Pro Shop 

 

Did you know your library can access the Vistaprint Pro Shop for professionally printed marketing 
materials and swag? With the membership that Parkland pays for, libraries can access the 
customized shopping portal and receive materials at 30%-50% off of their regular price. Initally, 
all libraries were activated with their main library email address as the login. Contact Hailey at 
hhalberg@prl.ab.ca if you need assistance. 
   

    

 

LIBRARY NEWS 
 
 

Find out about important deadlines and see what's happening at other Parkland Libraries! 
  
 

 

West Coast Seeds Donation 

 

We would like to thank West Coast Seeds for their $750 donation of seeds for our revamp 
of the Out in the Garden Children's Programming Kits! The kits are quite ready yet (stay 
tuned for their completion) but we can't wait to see our member libraries help the kids in 
their community learn about gardening!  
  
Looking to start a seed garden at your local library? Check out West Coast Seeds, Seed 

mailto:libraryservices@prl.ab.ca?subject=Coffee%20Break
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=e6b6d16bcf&e=61be8a5b9b
mailto:hhalberg@prl.ab.ca?subject=Vistaprint%20Pro%20Shop
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=2aedb6cd4a&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=a56474b200&e=61be8a5b9b


 

Donation Program!  
   

 

Minister's Awards for Excellence in Public Library Excellence for 2023 
Application Deadline: Thursday, June 15 
 
Letters from Minister Rebecca Schulz, from the Ministry of Municipal Affairs, were recently 
emailed to all municipalities and library boards announcing the launch of the 2023 Minister's 
Awards for Municipal and Public Library Excellence. This is an opportunity to recognize library 
boards for their efforts to serve communities across Alberta. Find information on the Minister's 
Awards and submission process on the awards program website and good luck! 
   

 

TRAINING & EVENTS 
 
 

Dates and registra�on informa�on for upcoming library training and events. 
  
 

 

Upcoming Webinars 

• PLC Meeting and Programming Workshop - June 5 at 10am. Hybrid PLC meeting. 
Join virtually via the calendar invite, or join us in person if you have RSVP'd.  

If you would like more information about these training opportunities, please contact 
libraryservices@prl.ab.ca. To watch past training sessions, visit Niche Academy. 
   

 

Alberta Seniors Week: Free 
Canadian Revenue Agency (CRA) 
Webinar Sessions 
Monday, June 5 - Sunday, June 11 
 
Join the CRA for free online information 
sessions during Alberta Seniors Week. To 
register for any (or all) of the webinars, 
email OUTREACHABG@cra-arc.gc.ca 
with your name and the session(s) you 
would like to attend. They'll email a link to 

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=a56474b200&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=2d155252f2&e=61be8a5b9b
mailto:libraryservices@prl.ab.ca
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=13622bff65&e=61be8a5b9b
mailto:OUTREACHABG@cra-arc.gc.ca


 

you to join the webinar via Microsoft 
Teams.   

• June 5, 10:00 am Be Scam Smart! 
• June 8, 10:00 am Be Scam Smart! 
• June 6, 10:00 am Seniors Benefits 

& Credits 
• June 7, 10:00 am  Disability Tax 

Credit/Medical Expenses/Home 
Accessibility Tax Credit 

Feel free to print this poster to display in 
your library today!  
   

 

 

LAA Speaker Series: Public 
Organizations in a Time of 
Upheaval 
Wednesday, June 14 
10:30am 

If you missed part one of this speaker 
series, join the Library Association of 
Alberta (LAA) for part two! LAA's Virtual 
Speaker Series features sessions focusing 
on professional growth and development 
for library professionals from sectors and in 
all career growth and development 
stages. Registration for the Speaker Series 
is free and open to all members of the 
Alberta Library Community, regardless of 
LAA membership 
status. Visit laa.heysummit.com for more 
information and to register. 
  

  

The Fight Against Book Bans: 
How Do We Move 
Forward? Webinar 
Wednesday, June 14 
12:00pm 
 
Book challenges and bans have been on 
the rise in North America since 2020, 
especially in public and school libraries. 
Many librarians have faced these 
challenges with courage and commitment 
to the principles of intellectual freedom and 
access to information, while others have 
yet to deal with this issue. Register for this 
webinar to refresh your understanding of 
intellectual freedom, explore the rise in 
book challenges, consider how to respond 
to challenges, and draw on the 
experiences and perspectives of other 
library professionals.  
   

 

 

The Practice of Leadership: 
Nurturing Your Capacity to Lead 
Your Team, Your Organization, & 
Your Community Webinar 
Wednesday, June 14 
1:00pm 
 
In this free webinar for senior leaders, team 
leads, and aspiring leaders, the experts at 
IntegralOrg give an overview of leadership 
theory, together with ways to put 
knowledge into practice. 
   

   

 

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=9e14326b21&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=db669a0cef&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=db669a0cef&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=1bbc822ac2&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=cd4a954c14&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=cd4a954c14&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=e0b4ee6f7c&e=61be8a5b9b


 

 

Parkland Update 

Thursday, June 15, 2023  
 
 

Get the latest Parkland updates, library news, training, events, and more! 
Stay up to date by visi�ng our support site. 

 

  

 

The Economist Has Moved From Overdrive to PressReader 
  

Due to contract negotiations out of our control, The Economist has been removed from 
OverDrive. However, thanks to the Public Library Services Branch, we are excited to 
share that The Economist is now available on PressReader. 
  
PressReader has a webpage with all of their marketing materials that libraries might find 
useful: Tools for Success—Libraries & Institutions. 
   

 

Thank You PLC Meeting and Programming Workshop Attendees! 
 
Thank you to all those who attended the June PLC Meeting and Programming Workshop! If you 
would like more information or meeting notes from the PLC meeting, please contact 
libraryservices@prl.ab.ca. A video presentation of the material covered in the afternoon portion 
of the Programming Workshop is coming soon!  
   

Are You Getting the Most From Canva? 
 
Canva is user-friendly design software where you can create anything in a snap, from 
presentations and logos to social media posts—no design skills or experience required! Libraries 
can get Canva for Non-Profits, which allows access to all the premium benefits for free. If you'd 
like to be added to Parkland's Canva for Non-Profits account, please contact Emma 

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=6de429d8bd&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=81ca1fa419&e=61be8a5b9b
mailto:libraryservices@prl.ab.ca
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=e00fc2e98b&e=61be8a5b9b


 

at emchpherson@prl.ab.ca. 
 
Once you have access, watch this beginner tutorial to learn about all of the features Canva has 
to offer.  
   

    

 

LIBRARY NEWS 
 
 

Find out about important deadlines and see what's happening at other Parkland Libraries! 
  
 

 

OverDrive Big Library Read 

 

 

The Big Library Read Selection is A Very Typical Family by Sierra Godfrey. Written with 
delightfully dark humor and characters you can't help but cheer for, A Very Typical Family is 
an uplifting family drama that will have you reveling in the power of second chances. This 
book will be available on Libby starting July 13. Check out these marketing materials to help 
you spread the word to your library users.  
   

Happy Pride Month! 
 
June is Pride Month and celebratory events are happening across the province. The Central 
Alberta Pride Society plans the annual Central Alberta Pride Week held the week of August 6-

mailto:emchpherson@prl.ab.ca?subject=Canva%20for%20Non%20Profits
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=6fea36f1b5&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=74727c69a5&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=05bf7e733f&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=420bb09a58&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=898b2e42ca&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=898b2e42ca&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=3be4f14e7b&e=61be8a5b9b


 

12, 2023. 
 
Need ideas for book recommendations? Browse through Autostraddle's numerous booklists on 
a wide variety of queer subjects from poetry to haunted house stories.  
 
Check out this guide for creating a Pride campaign on social media, or get some inspiration from 
this Didsbury Municipal Library Instagram post. 
   

 

Venture for Canada Internship Program 
 
Venture for Canada's internship program provides a 50-70% wage subsidy (capped at $7,000) 
per student per term for charities and nonprofits that employ fewer than 500 people. Programs 
can start in the summer, fall, or winter semesters. The application deadline is Friday, July 7, 
2023.  
   

 

TRAINING & EVENTS 
 
 

Dates and registra�on informa�on for upcoming library training and events. 
  
 

 

Upcoming Webinars 

• Brand Guidelines, Copyright, and Social Media Webinar - July 12 at 1:30pm. Contact 
Hailey at hhalberg@prl.ab.ca if you would like to attend.  

If you would like more information about these training opportunities, please contact 
libraryservices@prl.ab.ca. To watch past training sessions, visit Niche Academy. 
   

 

Decolonizing Libraries is for 
Everyone Webinar 
Monday, June 27 
10am 
 
Join three three Indigenous librarians from 
the Council of Prairie and Pacific University 
Libraries as they discuss how non-

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=61c94c3de3&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=6e2cd62174&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=4751f81b76&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=2823d933a6&e=61be8a5b9b
mailto:hhalberg@prl.ab.ca?subject=Marketing%20Webinar
mailto:libraryservices@prl.ab.ca
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=77b996dccd&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=439a50c04d&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=439a50c04d&e=61be8a5b9b


 

Indigenous library employees can support 
Indigenous colleagues and patrons. In this 
webinar, the panelists will share their 
experiences in public and academic 
libraries, talk about who should be 
engaging in decolonial work within 
libraries, and why this work is important. 
   

 

 

Beyond the One-Time Gift: 
Advanced Techniques for Donor 
Retention Webinar 
Thursday, June 29 
11am 
 
Did you know that retaining donors is 5 
times more cost-effective than recruiting 
new ones? However, despite the nonprofit 
industry’s average donor retention rate of 
45%, organizations all over the world are 
struggling to keep their donors coming 
back for more. In this webinar, learn new 
techniques, tips, and insights for engaging 
supporters of your library.  
   

  

Low Morale in Libraries Webinar 
Thursday, June 29 
1pm 
 
Low morale is detrimental to the health and 
well-being of employees, library 
organizations, and the communities they 
serve. Join this webinar to learn about 
identifying various workplace factors and 
events that can lead to or trigger low 
morale, as well as revealing the systems 
and structures that enable and perpetuate 
low morale.  
   

 

 

Library Management Training 
Thursdays, October 17 - 
December 5 
 
This 8-week virtual course will set you up 
for success in your future or existing 
management position by training you on 
the fundamentals of staff relationships and 
management, HR policies and processes, 
budget management, leading a team 
through change, and more. Built 
specifically for managers (or those on a 
future management track), this interactive 
course provides the opportunity to role-play 
challenging scenarios and get feedback 
from experts and peers. Early-bird cost: 
$375 USD. 
   

   

 
  

 
  

 

https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=8baa560dba&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=8baa560dba&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=4d914191f1&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=7d6e37cc0f&e=61be8a5b9b
https://prl.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=314bf9280b61133f5194d6cb7&id=f086ce7eb4&e=61be8a5b9b






































 

  
 1 

 

 

PRLS BOARD TALK 

Highlights of the Parkland Regional 
Library Board Meeting 

MAY 18, 2023 

Audit Report Approved 
Parkland’s audit was presented to the board by MNPs 
Lindsey Bauman and Erin Switenky.  

Parkland received a clean audit. Bauman noted that 
three of the five items in the management letter from 
last year have been resolved.  

A copy of the Auditor’s Report and Report to the Board 
has been sent to your municipality.  

Audit Policy  
Sheppard reviewed the potentially changed audit policy 
from the Parkland Policies and Bylaws document. At the 
March 16th Executive Committee meeting, staff were 
directed to create a draft policy allowing the Executive 
Committee of the board to approve the audit. Parkland’s 
auditors stated it is typical practice to approve financial 
statements at the initial presentation to a board or 
Executive Committee representing the board. Parkland’s 
auditors are required to perform audit testing with the 
Parkland staff until the audit is approved. 

One advantage of having the audit approved earlier by 
the Executive Committee is that Parkland might receive 
its government operating grant and the rural library 
services grant earlier. Submitting an approved audit is 
one of the Government of Alberta’s annual grant 
requirements. 

After much discussion, the board agreed to the policy 
change.  

 

ALTA Representative 
Former Parkland board member, Bob Green, has stated 
his intention to step down from his long-time role as 
ALTA board member and Area 3 representative on May 
31st. A call for nominations or volunteers resulted in 
Barb Gilliat, from the Village of Alix, volunteering for the 
position. Thank you, Barb!  

2024 Budget/Requisition Increase 
Sheppard reviewed the proposed budget for 2024. Even 
without taking into account salary increases, it will be a 
tight budget year despite additional provincial funding.  

Salary Grid 
In September of 2022, a compensation review was 
performed by Dr. Margaret Law. Out of that review a 
motion was made by the board “to direct Ron Sheppard 
to work with Dr. Law to develop a seven-step payroll grid 
to replace Parkland’s current grid”. This motion was a 
result of a recommendation from the Compensation 
Review which stated: “The salary grid has an unusual 
number of steps. The recommendation is 5-8 steps, 
which is an estimate of the number of years that it takes 
to master the job.”  

The complexity of reducing the steps of the salary grid 
were such that the Executive Committee could not 
resolve the issue at their last two meetings. Instead, they 
decided to form a subcommittee which would examine 
the issue comprehensively. Reducing the steps of the 
grid encompasses Parkland’s whole compensation 
philosophy, policy, and budget.  

Seven volunteers for the subcommittee include Deb 
Smith, Barb Gilliat, Len Phillips, Janice Wing, Twyla Hale, 
Jul Bissell, and Stephen Levy.  

It is hoped that the new Compensation Policy will be 
completed in time to be incorporated into Parkland’s 
2025 budget. 

Marketing and Advocacy Report  
Norma Penney reviewed the Advocacy Committee 
report. She explained the history of the committee, its 
expansion to the other library systems, and its many 
recent efforts, especially those associated with the 
provincial election.  

Despite recent increases to library grants from the 
Government of Alberta, the Advocacy Committee 
believes library boards need to still be visiting current 



 

  
 2 

 

MLAs to thank them for the additional grant funding 
with an undertone that ideally more needs to be done to 
sustain rural public library service in particular.  
Many materials have been created to assist library 
boards with this advocacy effort. 

After Penney’s update, Sheppard reviewed the Marketing 
Report, and indicated where to find the latest Municipal 
ROIs on Parkland’s website at the following URL:  
Return on Investment - Parkland Regional Library System 
(https://www.prl.ab.ca/about-us/return-on-
investmentprl.ab.ca) 

Board members are strongly encouraged to download 
and print their municipal ROIs and present them to 
council.  

In addition, Parkland has created a marketing strategy to 
contribute to the success of the main priorities that 
directly relate to the main goals of the Strategic Plan 
2023-2025. This plan is meant to be a general guiding 
document, with detailed action items to be determined 
by Parkland staff. 

Committee News from Trustees 
Stettler and Stettler County formed an intermunicipal 
library board agreement three years ago, which has just 
expired. They have renewed the agreement for five more 
years and celebrated that fact on May 4th.  

The Penhold & District Public Library have been 
running programs with the assistance of children from 
the community. In addition, their friends of the library 
group will hold an artisan gala with a chocolatier, 
caricature artist, and more.  

The Sedgewick & District Municipal Library has been 
in their new location downtown for six months and 
support/demand for the library has continued to 
increase.  

The Village of Cremona recommends a CBC podcast by 
Terry O’Reilly about marketing for libraries. They have 
also set up a small free library in their community and 
encourages others to do the same.  

The Clive Public Library is holding a program called 
“Books and Cooks” for pre-school aged children that has 
been very popular.  

The Caroline Municipal Library has been holding a 
program called “Sensory Wednesday” featuring sand and 

water play that has been extremely popular. They are 
also holding film nights through the summer.  

Board Members Present 
Teresa Rilling (Board Chair), Alison Barker-Jevne, Jul 
Bissell, Doug Booker, Deb Coombes, Jaime Coston, Edna 
Coulter, Teresa Cunningham, Jeff Eckstrand, Richard 
Forsberg, Elaine Fossen, Dwayne Fulton, Clark German, 
Barbara Gibson, Barb Gilliat, Twyla Hale, Pam Hansen, 
Dana Kreil, Stephen Levy, Julie Maplethorpe, Joy-Anne 
Murphy, Norma Penney, Leonard Phillips, Ray 
Reckseidler, Deb Smith, Les Stulberg, Delaney Thoreson, 
Carlene Wetthuhn, Angie Fricke (alt. for Shannon Wilcox), 
Darren Wilson 

Regrets 
Cody Hillmer, Connie Hueslman, Gord Lawlor, Marc 
Mousseau, Bill Rock, Pat Toone, Shannon Wilcox, Bill 
Windsor, Janice Wing 

Absent 
Cal David, Amanda Derksen, Kathy Hall, Michael 
Hildebrandt, Ricci Matthews, Jackie Northey, Shawn 
Peach, Diane Roth, Sandy Shipton, Michelle Swanson, 
Doug Weir, Patricia Young 

Staff  
Kara Hamilton, Andrea Newland, Ron Sheppard, Tim 
Spark, Donna Williams 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Next Meeting: September 14, 2023 (in-Person) 
For more information, or if you want a copy of the draft 
minutes from this board meeting, please contact PRLS.  


	HALF MOON BAY JULY 2023 AGENDA PACKAGE
	Agenda
	C-1 MINUTES
	AGENDA APPROVAL
	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
	HMC-23-046 MOVED by Councillor Pashak that the minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council held on April 25, 2023, be approved as presented.
	CARRIED
	Deputy Mayor Remington joined the meeting at 9:05 a.m. via Zoom.
	1) Accounts Payable
	2) Public Works Report
	3) Development Update
	4) CAO Report

	C-2 MPC MINUTES
	D-1  PAYABLES UPDATE
	Payables-Update
	Payables-List of Accounts for Approval

	D-3 PUBLIC WORKS REPORT
	D-4 DEVELOPMENT UPDATE
	D-5 CAO REPORT
	CAO report
	COUNCIL CALENDAR

	E-1-A ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES CONVENTION
	Alberta Municipalities
	AB Munis att
	Event Summary


	E-1-B BENTLEY PARADE
	Bentley Fair Days
	Bentley att

	E-1-C GOLF CART RESOLUTION
	Title of resolution:  Use of Golf Carts on designated municipal roads
	Moved by: Summer Village of Half Moon Bay
	Seconded by: Village of Delburne

	F-1,2 COUNCIL REPORTS
	Council Reports
	COUNCIL REPORTS - Pashak (5jul23)


	PRL Board Meeting Minutes May 18, 2023 - draft
	May 18, 2023

	PRLB 60123
	Young at Heart Trade Show 
	Library Managers Coffee Break
	Vistaprint Pro Shop
	LIBRARY NEWS
	West Coast Seeds Donation
	Minister's Awards for Excellence in Public Library Excellence for 2023

	TRAINING & EVENTS
	Upcoming Webinars
	Alberta Seniors Week: Free Canadian Revenue Agency (CRA) Webinar Sessions
	Monday, June 5 - Sunday, June 11

	LAA Speaker Series: Public Organizations in a Time of Upheaval
	Wednesday, June 1410:30am

	The Fight Against Book Bans: How Do We Move Forward? Webinar
	Wednesday, June 14
	12:00pm

	The Practice of Leadership: Nurturing Your Capacity to Lead Your Team, Your Organization, & Your Community Webinar
	Wednesday, June 14
	1:00pm



	PRLB 061523
	The Economist Has Moved From Overdrive to PressReader
	Thank You PLC Meeting and Programming Workshop Attendees!
	Are You Getting the Most From Canva?
	LIBRARY NEWS
	OverDrive Big Library Read
	Happy Pride Month!
	Venture for Canada Internship Program

	TRAINING & EVENTS
	Upcoming Webinars
	Decolonizing Libraries is for Everyone Webinar
	Monday, June 27
	10am

	Beyond the One-Time Gift: Advanced Techniques for Donor Retention Webinar
	Thursday, June 29
	11am

	Low Morale in Libraries Webinar
	Thursday, June 29
	1pm

	Library Management Training
	Thursdays, October 17 - December 5



	PRLS 2022 Audited Financial Statements
	PRLS Board Talk - May 18, 2023
	D-2 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL.pdf
	HMB 2nd Qtr   Financial Report
	HMB 2nd Qtr Financial Report ATT




